The City of Billings Zoning Commission met on Tuesday, January 3, 2023 at 4:30 p.m., 2825 3rd Ave North, 1st
floor conference room of the Miller Building. The public may attend in person or watch the meeting live on Facebook
(see below). The Public may call in during specific Public Comment periods at (406) 237-6165. All callers will be in a
queued system and are asked to remain on hold and be patient. Calls will be taken in the order they are received. Callers
will be restricted to 3 minutes of testimony as is customary. Comments may be sent to Board via email before 1:00
PM on Tuesday, January 3, 2022. All e-mails received prior to this time will become part of the record for the public
hearing. Live coverage can be viewed on the City of Billings Facebook page here; https://tinyurl.com/yckr478k

The City Council has designated January 23, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. as the date and time to receive the Zoning
Commission recommendation for the Special Review and hold a public hearing.

The City Council has designated February 13, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. as the date and time to receive the Zoning
Commission recommendation for the Zone Change and hold a public hearing The Council will conduct a
public hearing for the first reading of the ordinance on February 13, 2023. If approved on first reading, a
second reading will occur on February 27, 2023 at 5:30 pm.

Commission and Staff
M M M o, o M M M M| o;m m m
o N AN NN NN NN NN AN
o o o o o o o o o o o o
N N N | N ] N N N N NN
~~ ~~ ~~ ~—~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~ ~~ ~ ~~ ~~
o N N I N G W O d W oM N W
o o o o o 9o 9O o o 9o o o
~~ ~~ ~~ ~—~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~ ~~
d o o S| Wb G =~ 0O o J -«
o o O o o o o o o 4d d d
Mike Larson Chairman 1
Daniel J. Brooks Commissioner E
Greg McCall Vice Chairman E
Trina White Commissioner 1
David Goss Commissioner 1
Wyeth Friday Director, PCSD - - - -
Monica Plecker Division Planning Manager - - - -
Nicole Cromwell Zoning Coordinator 1
Tammy Deines Planning Clerk -
Dave Green Planner Il -
Karen Husman Planner | -
Robbin Bartley Administrative Support 1
Total Number of
2022 slelglglele el gl glglalal s
Applications o ol ol o] © o|l ol ol o] © o o O
AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN T
~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~
™ N~ N~ < N oS o) — 7o) Ia2) N~ o) A
o o o o o o o o o o o o
~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~~ S~~~ ~ ~~
— N (90) < Te) © N~ [e0) (o)) (=) — Y L
o o o o o o o o o — — —
Zone Change 1
Special Review |1



https://tinyurl.com/yckr478k

Chair Larson introduced the Planning Division Staff and Commission: Attending Staff were Nicole Cromwell,
Zoning Coordinator and Robbin Bartley, Administrative Assistant.

*RETURNING AGENDA ITEM.

Attending:

Chair Larson called the meeting to order at 4:31 pm.
Public Comment

Chair Larson called for public comments. There were no public comments. Chair Larson closed the public
comment portion of the meeting.

Approval of Minutes:
Motion by Commissioner Goss and seconded by Commissioner White to approve the November 1, 2022
meeting minutes with correction.

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

COMMISSIONER | DISCLOSED NONE ABSTAINED ABSENT
Mike Larson X

Daniel J. Brooks X
David Goss X

Greg MccCall X
Trina White X

Disclosure of Outside Communication

COMMISSIONER DISCLOSED NONE ABSTAINED ABSENT
Mike Larson X

Daniel J. Brooks X
David Goss X

Greg McCall X
Trina White X

Commissioners White and Goss visited Special Review 995 and Zone Change 1021 locations.

Public Hearings:

City Special Review 995 — Blue Creek Rd & Santiago Blvd — Request for Car Wash — A special review
request to allow a carwash facility in a Corridor Mixed Use 1 (CMU1) zone on Lot 1 of Blue Creek Storage
Subdivision a .917 acre parcel of land. The applicant has also included requests for variances from the CMU1
Site and Structure regulations in Table 27-400-3 including: (A.1) Build-To Corner, (A.3) Minimum Front Lot



Line coverage, (A.4 & A.5) Front and Street-Side Build-to Ranges, (B.8) Parking location, (D.16) Window and
Door requirements, and (D.18) Number of Entries on the Front facade; Sec. 27-1005 (Q.1) Carwash bay doors
on the front facade, (Q.3.b) location of open air vacuuming facility in the front or street-side yard. A pre-
application neighborhood meeting was held on November 21, 2022.

Staff Recommendation:
Planning staff is recommending approval and adoption of the proposed findings of the 9 criteria for Special Review
995.

O Special Review Uses are “special exceptions” in the zone district — not allowed uses

U Proof of compatibility of the Special Review Use rests with the applicant

U Nine Review Criteria

1. Consistent with the City’s growth policy

2. Will not endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare

3. Site is adequate in size and topography to accommodate the use

4. Will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property nor diminish and impair property values
5. Will not impede the normal and orderly development od the area

6. Conditions necessary to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare can be established

7. Site has or will have adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or necessary facilities

8. Adequate measures taken to provide ingress and egress

9. The special review use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations or as modified by
the City Council

» 1. Approval is for operation of a carwash with 2 auto wash bays and 4 self-service wash bays, 5
outdoor vacuuming stalls on this lot.

» 2. Substantial conformance with submitted site plan — operational hours from 5 am to 10 pm
daily.

» 3. Building design and elevations as shown on the architectural drawings.

» 4. Site obscuring wall on the north and southeast property line as shown on plan sheet. Materials
will be a masonry wall or facsimile of masonry (Rhino Rock) and will use earth tones. Wood,
vinyl and chain link not allowed for this wall location. Proposed sight obscuring fence on south
property line may be wood or matte-finish vinyl.

» 5. Install required number of street trees along the inside of new sidewalk on Santiago Blvd.
Deciduous trees that will not impeded existing or future infrastructure. Shielding of vacuum
stalls on the west property line will be a combo of ornamental grasses and shrubs including
evergreen shrubs.

» 6. Landscape plan for property will be prepared and stamped by a MT licensed landscape
architect.

» 7. Site plan submitted for Building permit review will include a snow storage area and the
location and detail for the trash enclosure.

» 8. All installed landscaping will be maintained and replaced as needed.

» 9. Pavement markings to ensure pedestrian and direction of vehicle travel will be provided on the
site.

» 10. No internally illuminated fascia is allowed and all lighting on the building will have full cut-
off shields.

» 11. Max height of parking lot lights will be 15 feet and installed with full cut-off shields.

» 12. No exterior attached signs on the building facade that faces east.

» 13. All signs shall comply with code for CMUL1 district and any lighted sign will not be lit during
non-operational hours.

» 14. Submit a building permit within 1 year of approval and complete the project within 2 years of
building permit issuance.

» 15. Requested variances and modifications of site and building standards for CMUL1 are
specifically approve.

» 16. Minor modifications of the site are allowed (10% or less)



» 17. If special review use ceases for 6 consecutive months or more, a new special review approval
is required to re-establish the use.

» 18. Council reserves the right to re-open the conditional approval if the owner fails to respond to
a notice of non-compliance with conditions of approval within 45 days. Notice to owner at least
60 days in advance of Council hearing

» 19. Conditions run with the land and are binding on current and future owners.

» 20. Right of building and occupancy permits are contingent on fulfillment of conditions of
approval.

Discussion. Questions for staff:

Applicant: Scott Aspenlieder, PEC

He is the agent for the owner, he stated the owner has no objection to any of the porposed conditions. He stated
the project has taken a long road to get to this point in the process. He stated it was his understanding the zone
change (Zone Change 1017) to CS — Heavy Commercial was denied due to the other types of uses that could
occur in that district — not that a car wash facility was not appropiate at this location. He stated any use of the
property — car wash or otherwise — would require an applicant to seek variances form the CMUL district
requirements to build to the property line. Mr. Aspenlieder stated the owner lives in Briar wood and also owns
Blue Creek Storage directly adjacent to the subject property. He stated he reached out at every oportunity to
discuss concerns with the neighborhood, but only one person contacte him about how to work with MDT on a
safety study. He stated he sits on the Highway Commission as a representative of this MDT district, and he can
offer informed assistance to residents. He stated the County recently sent a letter to MDT requesting a safety
study for this section of Blue Creek Road. He stated these studies can take time and would need to be reviewed
and recommendations approved by the Highway Commission prior to any improvements by MDT. Mr.
Aspenlieder stated only 4 sturdents (SD 2 — Middle School and High School) from Cedar Park subdivision walk
down Santiato to catch the bus at Casey’s corner. He stated they asked the city (Engineering) if they could
build the new sidewalk on the north side of Santiago where it would be the most beneficial to these students, but
this was not allowed. The new sidewalk will be built on the south side of Santiago next to the subject property.
He stated there has been a queing analysis that was reviewed by City Engineering. The final conclusions of the
queing analysis were approved by the City Engineer. The analysis shows the automatic wash bay blowers and
vacuums on the west side shows the noise at the property lines will be well below even the nighttime maximum
in the city code. Mr. Aspenlieder stated the owner has agreed to the restricted hous of operation to find middle
ground with the neighborhood. Blue Creek Rd is a commercial corridor at this location south of the
Yellowstone River. The zoning is in place and development will happen because the public infrastructure is in
place.

Questions for applicant:

Public Hearing: 5:20 PM
Chair Larson opened the public hearing and called for anyone wishing to speak in favor or against Special
Review 995.

In Favor:

Opposed:

Mr. Vanica stated he was concerned with the internal traffic circulation and that it may allow cars to queue out
onto Santiago Blvd. Mr. Vanica also stated the special review criteria (Criteria 3) specifically requires a
proposed use to adhere to the zone district requirements. He also was confused why the applicant is requesting
these variations from the code requirements through the special review because the Board of Adjustment
normally reviews requests for variances. He stated the Commission should recommend denial based on these
irregularities in the process as well as the internal site circulation issues. Michele Johnson stated the residents
in the area should have the biggest input on what goes on this property since they will be the most effected. She



stated the service is not needed at this location since it is less than a three minute drive to the Holiday station car
wash on South Billings Blvd. She stated the traffic to and from the car wash will just add more confusion to the
chaos of traffic on Blue Creek Road. Ms. Johnson stated the comparison of traffic on S 32nd St W to Blue
Creek Rd by staff does not make sense. She stated the Cedar Park Subdivision may have a second access road
soon. She stated leaving out first responders from the discussion is not wise. She stated the Blue Creek Fire
Dept objected to the zone change and their concerns have not been addressed by this application. Cecil Werven
stated he is opposed to the application because it has access on the local street and not the commercial street -
Blue Creek Road. He stated the Zoning Commission should not be hearing the application because the zone
change was denied and Section 27-1611 of the zoning prohibits a subsequent application on the same property
for one year. Mr. Werven stated he does not believe MDT actually denied the drive approach on to Blue Creek
Road. Wendy Stiff stated the City Council made its decision at the zone change hearing on a 7-3 vote denying
the project. She stated it was not denied based on other uses that might be allowed in the CX but by the zone
change criteria findings and the proposed use. She stated the County's request for a safety study will bring new
information to the Zoning Commission and would be vital information to have prior to any decision on this
project. She stated the project does not meet the city's growth policy for infill. The cost burden to the existing
residents is too high especially the Cedar Park subdivision residents. She stated Zoning Commissioners would
be opposed if this were located on a corner near their own neighborhoods. She state Mr. Pimley, the owner, did
reach out to their newly formed Blue Creek Corridor Commission to join and continue a dialogue. Mr. Pimley
has since stopped communication with our group. Charles Stiff spoke in opposition to the request. He stated the
location of this car wash makes as much sense as the new Chick-fil-A at Rosebud and 24th St West. He stated
all the residents in the room were opposed to the special review. He stated the Zoning Commission should not
be hearing this application since the denial of the zone change happened less than one year ago. He stated
developers and consultants receive special treatment from staff and Commission. He stated people are tired of
the rubber-stamping that goes on at the expense of the existing neighborhoods. He stated both the Ward 3
Council members voted against the zone change. He stated he was concerned the car wash could have
bottlenecks if people drive in with trailers or RVs. Sherry Danielson stated she has lived in the Blue Creek area
for 43 years and is opposed to the use of this corner for a car wash. She stated she has watched the traffic
increase in volume and speed over the years. She stated there are not just trash trucks going to landfill anymore.
Landfill traffic includes large 18-wheeler side dump rigs as well as pick up trucks. She stated the road has about
three wrecks a year at Jellison and Blue Creek Road and these are not minor fender benders. She stated these
crashes take out guardrails and have serious injuries. She stated 250 vehicles using this car wash every day will
just add to the terrible traffic situation on Blue Creek Road. She also stated this owner is not managing or
maintaining the storage unit property very well. She stated all the trees died that were planted in the front yard
and was only mowed twice last summer. She does not believe the owner will take care of this property any
better than the storage units. She stated when the owner needs to ask for seven variances, then the Zoning
Commission should just deny the request. Heather Haynes stated she was opposed to the application. She stated
she has lived here for 12 years and is a single mother of four kids. She stated the out-of-date MDT traffic study
does not include any of the new traffic from all the County subdivisions done since 2006. She stated the
Assistant Fire Chief for the Blue Creek Fire Department asked MDT for a yellow flashing light on Blue Creek
Rd when the fire station moved out of Cedar Park and onto Blue Creek Rd. MDT denied the requested flashing
light. She stated the expectation that MDT would make safety improvements is not reasonable. She stated
building a new sidewalk on the south side of Santiago is useless. She would not let her kids use it when they
would have to coss Santiago to get to Casey's Corner for the school bus. She stated that queuing of cars for the
car wash could potentially block Santiago Blvd creating a safety hazard for her neighborhood. She stated the
landfill traffic is already a problem and this car wash would just add to that issue. She stated none of the
residents in the area need a car wash. Jim Danielson stated he is very concerned about more water getting on
Santiago Blvd in the winter. He stated it is already a problem just from the water filling stations on the north
side of Santiago. Gregg Morgan stated he probably lives closest to the new car wash property. He stated the
applicant has worked to address his concerns. He is not opposed per se and will probably use the car wash when
it is built. He stated he is concerned about what use could be allowed by right if this project is denied. He was
concerned the alternatives might be worse for the area than the proposed car wash. Terry Henneberry stated he
has lived in the area for over 40 years. He stated the owner should have considered connecting this property
with the storage unit property before now. He stated the wait time to get out of Cedar Park onto Blue Creek Rd
is longer morning and evening. He stated he was not concerned with the vacuum noise because it is the blower



noise that is more powerful. He stated he works up at the airport and the building he has to go into requires a
secure entry with an intercom. He stated when the rental car automatic car wash went in about 300 feet away,
when the blowers are on, he cannot hear anything on the intercom at the secure door. He stated the use of
Santiago Blvd - a local street - for the driveway to the car wash is not right. The street is not a commercial
street. He stated he thinks the owner is trying to squeeze too much on the property without regard to its effect on
other people.

Rebuttal:

Mr. Aspenlieder provided rebuttal and clarification on the application. He stated there is no way his consulting
firm or his clients get special treatment. He stated in the last 10 years representing clients in the city, he has
received negative recommendations from staff, from the City Zoning Commission and the City Council. He
stated the staff and the public boards all do a great job evaluating projects to make sure they don't impact
residents and further the goals of the community. He stated there are some neighbors who are satisfied with
work they have done over the last few months to change the overall site plan and iron out issues. Those
residents are not here tonight. He stated the issue over the number of students using Casey's Corner for a bus
stop is a misrepresentation of my statement. The four students | noted are come down Santiago Blvd. School
District 2 picks up 22 students total from Casey's Corner and only four come from the Cedar Park
neighborhood.

Public Hearing closed at 5:59 PM

Discussion:

Commissioner Goss stated he was a no vote when this was a Zone Change request. He believes the process
would allow a special review and that Zone Changes are a last resort.

Commissioner White is empathetic to the citizens concerns.
Motion

Commissioner Goss made a motion and Commissioner White seconded the motion to approve Special
Review 995 with staff findings, recommendation and conditions.

COMMISSIONER Yes No ABSTAINED ABSENT
Mike Larson X

Daniel J. Brooks X
David Goss X

Greg MccCall X
Trina White X

The Motion passed to approve Special Review 995 with a 3-0 vote.

City Zone Change 1021 — Vista West — PND — A zone change request from Agriculture (A — County) to
Neighborhood 1 (N1), Mixed Residential 2 and 3 (NX2-NX3) and Public 1 (P1) on Tract 1 and 2 of C/S 2828
and the adjacent drain right-of-way, a 27.7 acre parcel of land generally located north of Rocky Vista Way, west
of Shiloh Rd and south of Bell Avenue. There is a concurrent petition for annexation. A pre-application
neighborhood meeting was held on October 25, 2022.



Staff Recommendation:
Planning staff is recommending approval and adoption of the proposed findings of the 10 criteria for Zone Change
1021. Planning staff recommends approval of the zone change to N1, NX2, NX3 and P1.

New Zoning Tool to allow more efficient land use decisions

Concurrent with annexation

Applies to all requests of >= 10 acres

Helps build new neighborhoods that are walkable, sociable and resilient (BMCC 27-801.A)
Allows phasing of annexation but adoption of full zoning plan in advance

Provides more detail on new neighborhood infrastructure (streets/roads)

Re-submittal of Zone Change 1004 — withdrawn in Feb 2022

Applicant is requesting variance from Sec. 27-804.C requiring connectivity to existing streets (Bell Ave
and Obie Lane)

Staff is not recommending approval of the variance

Zoning meets the Growth Policy and West Billings Neighborhood Plan

Adjacent uses and zoning compatible with proposed zoning plan

Meets the PND zone district standards for zoning district assembly, and compatibility with existing
zoning

YVVYYVYYV

VVVYVY VYV

Discussion. Questions for staff:

The applicant conducted a pre-application neighborhood meeting on October 25, 2022, at the King of Glory Church
located at 4125 Grand Avenue. Twenty-seven persons attended the meeting including the applicants, Rick
Leuthold and John Halverson from Sanderson Stewart, agent for the applicant. The required notification area for all
new PND zone changesis 1/4-mile fromthe property boundary. In this case, over 180 individual property ownersand
interested parties were notified of the pending zoning application. The summary of the meeting is included in the
attachments. In general, the questions from the surrounding owners included interest in the number of new dwelling
units. The applicants estimated at the time of the pre-application meeting about 550 units mightbe built. Attendees
asked about the traffic impacts and access to surrounding existing streets. The agents stated they would seek a
variance from the requirement to connect to existing streets and a full traffic impact study would be based on whether
the requested variances are approved or not approved. A preliminary traffic study was done on the prior zone change
proposal that included two vehicle connections to Bell Avenue. In response to a question about management of the
development, the agents stated this would be under one managemen t company.

Theapplicant attended the West End Task Force meetingon November 15,2022, at the Community Connections Churchat 5556
Grand Avenue. Meeting notes fromthis meetingarealsoincluded. Athird public meetingwas heldat Riverfront Park on
November 22,2022, at 10:30am. Notes from this "public event™ are also included.

Planningstaffdid notreceiveanywritten commentsorphonecalls fromthesurrounding owners priortopreparingthe
Zoning Commission report and recommendation. City staff and departments had no negative comments on the
proposed annexation and zoning plan except for the requested variance from connecting existing streetstothis
development. City staff does notsupportthe variance. City staff believes at least one vehicle connection should be madeto
Bell Avenue andaconnection to Obie Lane, a County public road at this time, should be developed. The Zoning
Commissiondid notconcurwiththestaffrecommendationtodenythe requested connectivity variance. The Zoning
Commission did concur with the staff recommendation of approval for the zoning plan.

TheZoning Commission conducted its public hearingonJanuary 3,2023, and received the staff report, testimony from the
agent and from surrounding property owners including, Steve Zeier of Trinity Real Estate, Terry Kaufman of 110BigPine
Court, Toby Erickson, of 4142 Banbury Place, who was speaking on behalf of the several ownersin Legends West and
Twin Pines, Missy Erickson of 4142 Banbury Place, Mike Hinthorn of 4160 Bell Avenue, Lisa Owenof41600bie
Lane, Nancy Pedersonof26 TwinPines Lane,and LincolnPowersof41850bieLane.

John Halverson of Sanderson Stewart spoke as agent for the property owner, Mr. Rick Dorn. He presented the history of
the project for annexation and zone change. He stated the original request had significantly more NX3 zoningand
adjacentdevelopmentwasnotaddressedinthe zoning plan. Hestated the current proposal respectsthe adjacent zoning of
N2tothenorthandthe RR1zoningtotheeast by providing compatible zoning of N1tothe north andeast. Inaddition,
there is aplan for asmall tot-lot in the northeast corner, zoned Public 1, and alarge central recreationareaforallthe
residents alsozonedPublic 1. Mr. Halverson stated the request for the variance from the connectivity requirementis
basedonpotential traffic managementscenarios andontherequests fromtheadjacent ownerson Obie Laneand Bell
Avenueas well asthe residents inthe developments north of Bell Avenue. He stated thereisaproposed pedestrian



connectionto Bell Avenue, butthe east property line adjoining Obie Laneand Bell Estates subdivision (county)is
plannedtobe fenced offwithno connection. He statedthe N1zone onthenorthand east will allow for compatible
dwellings to be developed with similar building heights. Mr. Halverson presented a slide showwithagraphicshowingthe
differentbuildingheightsallowedandthegeographicrelationshiptoexistinghomes tothe eastand north. He stated the
taller buildingsinthe proposed NX3zone would beat least 290 feet west of Obie Lanehomesandat least 350 feet from
homes in Twin Pines. He statedthis location is within 1/4 mile of Shiloh Road whichisamajor corridor in Billings where
avariety ofhousingchoicesareavailableincluding mixed uses at Shiloh Commonswith ground-floor retail and
apartments above, apartments in Lenhardt Square and to the east of Shiloh Road as well as manufactured home parkstothe
east. Mr. Halversonstated noteveryone who lives in Billings isa homeowner and the latest information shows that at
least 35% of the Billings population rents. He stated none of thoserenters are represented at this meeting. He stated the
developerintendstobuildavariety of housing choices ontheproperty tohelpcreatenaturally occurringattainable
housing. Noneoftheunitsareintendedtobesubsidized and will be market rate products.

Mr. Halversonstated the owner providedthree opportunities for surrounding ownersand the public to learn more about
the proposed developmentprior tosubmitting theapplicationtothecity. Thefirst meetingwasby invitationto the
surrounding owners in November. The agent also attended the Westend Task Force meeting in November and a

publicactivity inRiverfront Park to ask peopleabout their experiences in Billings, andtheir opinion onthe proposed
developmentplan. Mr. Halversonstated the projectwas generally well received, butthe surrounding ownersstill had
concerns with the access to the property. He stated the application conforms to the city's Growth Policy and Westend
Neighborhood Plan. He stated that traffic volume is not dangerous - but traffic speed is dangerous. He stated the illustrated
concept plan showing the internal street system is provided with traffic-calming throughout, reducing traffic speed. He
stated hightraffic volume streets can be designed to make it is safe for cars and pedestrians. He stated thelocationofthe
projectwill givethese residents the opportunity to use othertransportation optionsandnothaveto driveeverywhere. He
stated the recreational, educational and shopping opportunitiesareall withinacomfortable walking distancetothe
property. Residential density of property makes these nearby amenities and destinations sustainable. Mr. Halverson
pointed outthe multi-use trail on Shiloh Road is now part of the Billings Marathon Loop and is within walking distance of
the newly open medical college at Rocky Vista University. He stated the clear limiting factor foreconomicgrowthin
Billingsistheavailability ofhousing forworkersinexistingandnewbusinesses. He stated this location within 1 mile of
the primary corridor intersection of King Ave West and Shiloh Road makes compactandefficientlanduseagoodchoice.
Mr. Halversonstated this newzoning plan hasalmost three times the minimum required openspace areaforaPND and this
will helpimprovethe sustainability of the neighborhood. He stated the city and state investment in Shiloh Road should
be supported by well-designed neighborhoods with amenities and not just big yards. He stated the zoning planis
supported and complements both the zoning to the north and east and the south and west.

Mr. Luethold, speakingas anagent for the applicant, stated the annexation and zone change proposal are agoodfit withthe
city's growth policy. He stated Josephine Crossing is agood example onhowto handle lots of traffic with pedestrian
safety throughout. He stated the developerwill contributetoany off siteandadjacentright ofway improvements that
are needed. These needed improvements are identified through a complete traffic study. As part of the previous application,
apreliminary traffic study was done, butthis isincomplete. Acomplete traffic study will be required onceazoningplanis
finalizedandthe developerbeginswork onfinalizing the development plan. Oneofthe examples of an off site improvement
might be upgrades to the Bell Ave street section where it crosses the drainat Shiloh Road. He stated there are deficiencies
inthe width and geometry at the crossing andthere isawoodenfence inthe clear vision areathat blocks vehiclesite
distance for pedestrians and bicyclists onthe multi-use path. Mr.

Leutholdstated improvements will be done on Bell Avenue whereitis adjacentto the property and if other
improvementsarerequiredbythetraffic study, those will bedoneaswell. He stated the variance requestis based on requests
fromtheadjacentowners, andbased onthe perceptionthatthis developmentwill add anuncompensated burdenonthese
adjacentneighborhoods. He stated the owner is opento leaving utility easementsavailable to Bell Ave and Obie Lane if
needed for future utility connections.

Inresponsetoaquestionfrom Commissionmember David Goss, Mr. LeutholdstatedthereasonnoaccesstoObie Laneis
provided istheclear concern fromthese neighbors that people from this new development would wander throughthe
subdivision. Mr. Leutholdstatedtheconnectionwaseliminated inresponsetotheirconcerns.

Mr. Steve Zeier of Trinity Real Estate stated he was in favor of the zone change. He stated he has norelationship withthe
developerortheagentbutwasheretosupportthistypeofzoningforthearea. Hestatedasourcity has grown, the
development of newhousing of any type has laggedbehind. He stated the oneareawhere we can makea differencein
housingcostsisinlocal regulationsandby allowing thismixture ofzoningto helpbuildhousingchoices. He also stated his
desire to see the new code implemented consistently and fairly across the board.

Terry Kaufmanof Twin Pinestestified in opposition. She stated the number of dwelling units - 582 - was too many for this
27acreparcel of land. Shestated the answertothe lack ofhousingis notjustaquantity issue--italsoisa quality issue.



Shestatedtherewere4,000jobsavailableinBillingsrecently. Evenifevery jobwastaken, therewould still beenough
apartments foreveryonewhowants one. Shestatedthe City Councilhasapprovedzoningor development of over
2,000 apartments in the last year. She asked whether the City Council or staff has a plan for whenall theseapartmentsgo
vacantwh%ndemandsubsides.Shestatedtheamountofparkingrequiredwould betoo much for this property to
accommodate.

Toby Erickson of Legends West spoke in oppositiontothe zone change. He stated the homeowners in the adjacent
subdivisions could nothopeto compete withtheslick presentation by the developer. He stated he was testifying on behalf
of many owners inthe adjacent Twin Pinesand Legends West subdivision and would appreciate morethan threeminutes
topresenthisarguments. Chairman LarsonallowedMr. Erickson 15more minutesthantheusual three minutes. He stated
thefirstmentionofmultifamily developmentonthe property was 10year agoandthatapplication waswithdrawn. Atthe
time, there was no possibility of physically connecting the development to the south, so the only connections was to Bell
AveandObie Lane. Last year, the applicant came in with a development of mostly 4- story apartment buildings, and no
transitional zoning across Bell Ave from Bell Estates. He stated the current proposal has a few more things going for
it, butthe density is still too high. He stated one row of developed lots with similar dwellingsto Twin Pines and Legends
West is notenough. He stated it should be much more. He stated the existing city infrastructure cannot supportan
additional 582 dwelling units inthis area. He stated everyone inthe roomopposesthezonechange. Hestatedthereisnot
enoughconsiderationfortheneighbors. Hestatedthe development plan may tick many boxes, but the development just
doesnot fitwith the adjacent area. He stated the higherthe density, the fewer peopletendto careabouttheir surroundingsor
theirneighbors. He stated Bell Avenueis anincomplete street, and it would not be right to put any of the newtraffic on Bell
Avenue. He stated the existing Bell Aveintersectionisdeficientandonly allowsarightturn (southbound)onShilohRoad.
Anyonewantingtogonorthor eastwill drivethrough Legends West, oreven Twin Pinesor Bonaventureto reach Central
Avenue. Thisputsatraffic burdenonourstreets we should nothaveto endure. He stated there is already agood mix of
developmentstylesand housingchoicesintheareaanddoesnotseethe needtoadd moreapartments. He questioned whether
WestBillings will be nothing but apartments from now on. He stated apartment developments are not as fire-safe as less
dense neighborhoods. Hestatedthere will besignificantimpacts onschools andthere will be higherincidenceof crime. He
stated theseare just results of a higher population - not that people living in apartments are more proneto crime. He stated
thiswill beanegative impactonall types oftransportation inthe areaandthere isnobenefitto connectingthis development
toObie Lane-evenapedestrianconnectiondoes notmake sense for Obie Lane. He stated Obie Lane hasnosidewalksso
addingpedestrianstothisstreetwill justincrease the possibility of car/pedestrianconflicts. He stated TwinPinesisa
private developmentandif this development is connected to Bell Ave, those residents will petitionto gate the streets
wherethey connect with Central Ave and Bell Ave. He stated this would not be as safe for these residents if they had to
gate their own streets. Legends West is all public streets and connects to Bell Ave - alsoapublicstreet. Itwouldbeunfair
toplacethiscostonexistingresidents. Hestated leavingtheareaonBell Avenueisnotsaferightnowespeciallyat
peak times. CarsonShilohRoadaregoing50+mphwhere Bell Ave intersects. A safe turn onto Shilohis notreally
possibleduring certaintimes of theday. If newtraffic is added, thena queue of cars will back up on Bell Avenue, making
the situation that much worse. He stated whenthe developer presented his preliminary traffic, it showed 1,000 more cars
per day using Bell Avenue. Mr. Erickson stated Bell Avenue cannot handle that many additional cars. He stated the zoning
buffer is notenoughandthe proposed N1is notthe sameas N2 or RR1. He stated appraisal values of adjacent homes will
be reduced and this will resultin less marketability of homesandtownhomesintheadjacentneighborhoods. He stated most
residentsoftheareafeel safe inthe homes and onthe neighborhood streets. He stated this development will make
everything feel less safe.

Missy Erickson of Legends West stated the neighbors are not opposed to development of land. She stated the Career Center
and the Home Builders Association have sponsored many student-built homes in the neighborhood. She stated this
development is not compatible and there should be much less multifamily onthe property.

MikeHinthornofBell Avenuestatedthe numberof peopleinthis developmentwill equal the population of Columbus, MT.
Hestatedthisistoo many peopleinsuchasmall area. He stated noworkers inthe nearby commercial businessescould
affordtoliveinany oftheseapartments. He stated the potential rent prices aretoo high for many workers in Billings.

Lisa Owenof Obie Lane stated she was opposed to the zone change. She stated she has lived in the area for 23 yearsand
never imaginedshewouldbelooking ata4-story apartmentinthe field west of her house. She stated this is not what she
thought would be developed west of her subdivision. Shestated she thinks shewill have to sell her home - nowvalued
between $400and $500thousand dollars. Shestated sheis just flabbergasted to think that 582 families will be living on
the 27 acres to the west of her house.

Nancy Pedersonof TwinPinesstated shewasopposedtothedevelopmentanddefinitely opposedtoanyconnection to Bell
Avenue. Shestated all the traffic not just fromthe development, but traffic from the medical school and other apartments
south of Monad Rd would use Bell Ave as a convenient cut through.



Lincoln Powers of Obie Lanetestified in opposition. He stated he and his wife invested intheir property with the
expectation of continued value over time. He stated his property shares a property line with the subject property and sothe
impact tohis land and property value is more thananyoneelse. He stated if he had known about the plans to build
apartmentsonthe land nextdoor 20 years ago, they would never have built here orinvested so muchtimeand resources
intotheir home. He stated Obie Laneisinaprivate subdivision and cannot just be connected to anew streettothewest.
Hestated, ifthiswasrequiredbythecity, theywouldexploretheirlegal optionstostopit. He statedhewasconcerned
aboutwhattypeoffencingthedeveloperproposestousealongthe property boundary. He stated there is no doubt their
land will be de-valued if this development goes ahead.

Mr. Leutholdprovided rebuttal commentstothe ZoningCommission. Hestatedall city departmentshave reviewed the
applicationandthe concept for the development of 582 units. He stated none of those departments expressed hesitationon
whether services could beprovided tothe property safely. Thenewdevelopmentwill pay its fair share forany off-site
improvementsthatmay berequired, the newdevelopmentwill pay its property taxesand mill leviesto support, police, fire,
schools, planningandgovernmentingeneral. Fees for other services like street maintenance, andstorm water control will
alsobe paid. He stated he is not atraffic engineer but has worked through many projects that needed atraffic engineer to
study the impacts of newtraffic. He stated this project, whenthe entitlements are finalized, will beginthe scoping and
preparationof afull traffic impact study, the scope of that study will depend on the city's requirement for vehicle
connectionstoadjoining property. He stated ShilonRoadwill carry the greatest burden of the newtraffic sinceitisthe
closest arterial street andis designed to handle at least 50,000 vehicle trips perday. (Shiloh carriedabout 18,000vehicles
perdayin2021). Hestated local streets are designedtohandle much lesstraffic at muchlower speeds. Local streets provide
circulationwithinneighborhoods andtendto have lessthan 1,000 vehicles per day. He stated one of the driving factors of
apartment developmentin Billings is notthe normal demandforapartments but newdemandfrom neweconomic
developmentsuchasRocky VistaMedical School and othermedical businessdevelopment. Hestatedthe studentsand
professorsofRocky Vistashouldbeabletoliveas closetotheschoolaspossible-reducingtheburdenofnewtraffic
trips. HestatedhehaslivedinBillingsfor38 years andlived inthree different types of neighborhoods from Wells Garden
Estates to Rimrock Roadtoacondo developmentnorth of Central Avenue. He stated most of these neighborhoodsare
"drive-to" only sincethereare no amenities or services withinwalking distance. The newreality of developmentis that
peoplewantmore amenities closer totheir homesand more walk-to services. This development fills this market demand.
He stated the city will continuetogrowandneighborhoodsontheedgesofthecity will needtoadjustasthecity grows.
Hestated he remembers when West Park Plaza was the edge of town, and now it is considered to bea “central™ part of the
city. Hestatedthecity, throughitspolicies, hasguideddeveloperstobe moreefficient, touseland more deliberately and
carefully. He stated this plan meets these policy goals.

TheZoningCommissionclosedthepublichearing. Commissionmember TrinaWhitemadeamotiontorecommend
approval of the zone change and denial of the requested variance from Section 27-804 requiring connectivity to existing
streets. The Chairman, Mike Larson, asked ifthe motion could beamendedtoexcludethe recommendation onthe
requestedvariancesothatissuecouldhaveaseparate vote. Themotionwasamendedtoexcludea recommendationon
thevariance andseconded by Commissionmember David Goss. Commissionmember Trina White stated that
consideration for traffic and vehicles is not the paramount issue. She stated developers work to diminishtheimpactnew
traffichasonsurrounding neighborhoods, butthe neighborhoodsshouldbeconnected. She stated the cost of housing is
rising because of the cost of local and state regulation of building. She stated the new national estimate of the cost to
developersto build asingle dwelling unitis $95,000dollars - and all of that cost is up front beforeasingleshovel goesin
the ground. She stated the city isgrowing as demand is goingup for newhousing ofall types. Shestated this has happened
sinceshestarted asareal estate broker. Shestated the expectation that nothing will be built next door onthe farmfield is
not realistic. Commission member David Goss stated he was the firstassistant City Administrator back whenthe city
changedits charter. He stated the major issues back thenare still the sameissues oftoday - annexation laws, county
subdivisions onthe edgeofthe city and howthoserules and regulationsnegatively effectedthegrowthofthecity. He
statedthecity didgrow-butitgrewoutbutnotup. He statedthe city needstoincrease density tobemoreefficientandthat
includestallerbuildings. He stated hedoes not believe that Bell Avenue hasthe capacity - evenwithimprovements - to
handlethetraffic fromthis development. He stated hissupportfortherequested variancetonotconnectthis development
with Bell Avenue. Hestated hewished there was an easy answer for this issue of traffic. He stated he supported to motion to
recommendapproval ofthe zone change.

Chairman Mike Larsonstated hewould like to make asubstitute motion. Mr. Larson madeamotionto recommend approval
ofboththe zone changeandtherequestedvariance. Hestated it was clear the memberswantedtodiscuss boththe zone
changeandthe variance together, and he agrees with Commission member Goss. The motionwas seconded by
Commission member Goss. Mr. Goss stated he would like to encourage the Council to consider preserving a right-of-
way if a future connection is needed and can be done with without damaging the existing neighborhoods. Mr. Larson
stated heisnotconvincedthatthe newtrafficwouldnothaveadetrimental impactonBell Avenue. He stated the current
condition of the street shows it should not be used by new traffic from this development. He stated the city can
only require so much from one developer,



Themotion torecommend approval of the zone change and approval of the requested variance was approved ona2- 1vote,
with Commission member White voting against the motion. Ms. White stated she supported the zoning but not the
requested variance.



L_, Bi"ings City of Billings Zoning Commission

‘ Meeting Minutes January 3, 2023

Public Hearing:7:10 PM
Chair Larson opened the public hearing and called for anyone wishing to speak in favor or against
City Zone Change 1021.

In Favor: Steve Zier

Opposed: As listed above

Public Hearing closed at 7:49PM

Discussion:

Motion
Commissioner Larson made a motion and Commissioner Goss seconded the motion to
approve City Zone Change 1021 with staff findings and approve the variances requested.

COMMISSIONER Yes No ABSTAINED ABSENT
Mike Larson X

Daniel J. Brooks X
David Goss X

Greg MccCall

Trina White X

The Motion passed to approve City Zone Change 1021 with a 2-1 vote.
Other Business:
Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 8:15 PM.

ATTEST: To be Approved by a motion at the next regularly scheduled meeting.
--Robbin Bartley, Administrative Assistant

City Zoning Commission
Minutes January 3, 2023 - Draft
Page 12 of 12



